
 

 

 

Cumbria County Council 
 

 

 
 

S U M M O N S   A N D   A G E N D A 
 

f o r   a  S p e c i a l  M e e t i n g   o f   t h e 
 

C o u n t y   C o u n c i l 
 

o n   Thursday, 24 June 2021 
 
 

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats. 

 
 

 
This meeting will be webcast on You Tube.  To watch the recording please click on 
the link below:- 
 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=HwQtd5HfTU0 
 
 
 

 Serving the People of Cumbria 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=HwQtd5HfTU0


 
2 

CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

MEETING OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 
 
To: ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL  
 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a Special Meeting of Cumbria County Council 
to be held at the Conference Room A&B, Cumbria House,  Botchergate Carlisle CA1 
1RD, on Thursday 24 June 2021 at 10.00 am 
 
 
 Yours sincerely 
 

 
Chief Executive 

 
Cumbria House 
Carlisle 
CA1 1RD 
 
Wednesday, 16 June 2021 
 
 
 
 

GROUP MEETINGS 
 

 Date and Time Venue 

CONSERVATIVE 21 June 2021 at 10am Remote via Teams 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
3 

 
A G E N D A 

 

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE 
OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

To receive any apologies for absence 
   
 
2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
To disclose any disclosable pecuniary interests relating to any item on the agenda. 
 
Members are asked to refer to the Monitoring Officer for advice in relation to the 
declaration of interests at meetings of the full Council.  A complete list of declarations 
notified to the Monitoring Officer by 5.00 pm on Monday 21 June 2021 will be circulated 
at the meeting. If any member wishes to correct or add to the circulated list, guidance on 
what constitutes a disclosable pecuniary interest is set out below. 
 
NB The following is a summary of what constitutes a disclosable pecuniary 
interest. Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer. 
 

Members must disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item on the 
agenda which comprises 

 
1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
 profit or gain.  
 
2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 

the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  

 
3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 

a beneficial interest) and the authority  
 

(a)  Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
 executed; and  
 

 (b)  Which has not been fully discharged.  
 
4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.   
 
5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 

the authority for a month or longer.   
 



 
4 

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)  
 
 (a) The landlord is the authority; and 
 
 (b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest. 
 
7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where 
 

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
 area of the authority; and 
 
(b) Either –  
 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
 hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered. 
 
Note 
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).  
   
 
3   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
To consider whether there are any items on the agenda in respect of which the press 
and public should be excluded during consideration of the item. 
   
 
4   TEMPORARY APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE/HEAD OF PAID 

SERVICE 
 

To consider a report from the Leader of the Council/Chair of the Chief Officers 
Committee (copy enclosed) 
   
(Pages 7 - 12) 
 
 
5   APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES - CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

 
To consider a report from the Leader (copy enclosed) 
 
(Pages 13 - 16) 
 



 
5 

6   APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON 
 

To consider a report from the Chief Legal Officer (copy enclosed) 
 
(Pages 17 - 26) 
 
 
7   AMENDMENTS TO THE APPROVED CAPITAL PROGRAMME  

 
To consider a report from the Deputy Leader (copy enclosed) 
 
(Pages 27 - 34) 
 
 
8   APPROVAL OF MEMBER ABSENCE 

 
To consider a report from the Leader of the Council (copy enclosed) 
 
(Pages 35 - 38) 
 
 
9   CHAIR'S CLOSING COMMENTS   

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

COUNTY COUNCIL  

Meeting date: 24 June 2021 

From: Leader of the Council/Chair of Chief Officers 
Committee  

 

TEMPORARY APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE/HEAD OF 

PAID SERVICE 
 

PART A - RECOMMENDATION FROM CHIEF OFFICERS COMMITTEE  
 
1.1 That Ms. Gillian (Gill) Steward be appointed to the position of the 

Council’s Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service, on a temporary basis, 
with effect from 3 August 2021, for a period of up to 24 months on the 
advertised terms and conditions for the post.  

1.2 That the initial period of appointment is for up to 12 months with the 
option of an extension up to a further 12 months. 

 

PART B – ADVICE OF CHIEF OFFICERS COMMITTEE 

2.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 This report asks Council to approve the recommended candidate 
selected by the Chief Officers Committee on 24 May 2021 following a 
robust selection process.  This recommended appointment would 
temporarily replace the outgoing Chief Executive, Katherine 
Fairclough, following the announcement of her resignation. 

3.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 The appointment process follows the Council’s Constitution and the 
relevant legal provisions in section 8 of this report.   

4.0 RECOMMENDATION 

4.1 That Ms. Gillian (Gill) Steward be appointed to the position of the 
Council’s Chief Executive/ Head of Paid Service, on a temporary basis, 
with effect from 3rd August 2021, for a period of up to 24 months on the 
advertised terms and conditions for the post.  

4.2 That the initial period of appointment is for up to 12 months with the 
option of an extension up to a further 12 months. 

7

Agenda Item 4



 

5.0 BACKGROUND 

5.1 The Chief Officers Committee, under the Council’s constitution, discharges 
on behalf of the authority the function of recommending to the Council the 
appointment  of the officer designated as the authority’s Chief 
Executive.(Head of Paid Service) and approving the terms and conditions of 
the appointment. 

5.2 Following the announcement of the current Chief Executive’s resignation 
with effect from 27 June 2021, Chief Officers Committee considered the 
options available to the County Council in relation to the appointment of a 
new Chief Executive.   

5.3 Chief Officers Committee agreed to advertise the post both internally and 
externally to attract suitable candidates for the temporary appointment.  

5.4 The post was advertised with a salary of £152,670 per annum. 

5.5 Following the external advertisement of the post of temporary Chief 
Executive a total of eight applications were received.  Four applications met 
the essential criteria and were progressed to Technical Interview stage. 

5.6 Technical interviews took place on 7 May and three candidates were 
successfully progressed to the two-day selection process which took place 
on 20 and 21 May. 

5.7 A two-day robust recruitment and selection process, in accordance with the 
corporate approach to Chief Officer appointments took place, for the 
shortlisted candidates, which included the following elements: 

 On day one there were two separate panel interviews for each candidate 
which consisted of:  

 External Stakeholder Panel including key partners, chaired by 
an Executive Director. 

 Internal Stakeholder Panel including Assistant Directors, 
Officers and chaired by an Executive Director.  

 On day two, following feedback from the stakeholder panels, two of the 
three candidates were progressed to final interview stage with 
Councillors from Chief Officer Committee who made up the interview 
panel.  

 The candidates also undertook 2 psychometric tests, WAVE and 16pf, 
which are well researched selection tools for the purpose of recruitment.  

 Feedback from these tests was shared with the interview panel by an 
independent Occupational Psychologist and interview questions were 
designed around key areas of the candidate’s profile to ensure the 
candidate could demonstrate their ability to fulfil the requirements of the 
role. 

8



 

 The candidates were required to provide the interview panel with a short 
‘pre-set’ presentation, as part of their interview process, followed by 
questions from the panel.  

5.8 After full consideration, the Chief Officers Committee decided that Gillian 
(Gill) Steward was the strongest candidate and recommended her for the 
appointment to the post of temporary Chief Executive.  Details of Ms. 
Steward’s career are attached at Appendix 1 in order to facilitate Council’s 
consideration of whether or not to approve the recommendation of the Chief 
Officers Committee to appoint. 

5.9 The proposed appointment has been considered by members of Cabinet 
and no objections have been received.  

5.10 Advice has been received from the Council’s Monitoring Officer about the 
above appointment process undertaken.  She has confirmed that this 
process conforms to the requirements of the Council’s constitution and that 
all necessary steps have now been completed prior to Council’s 
consideration of whether or not to approve the recommended appointee. 

6.0 OPTIONS 

6.1 OPTION 1 - Council can approve the recommendation of the Chief Officers 
Committee for the appointment of the Council’s temporary Chief Executive 
(Head of Paid Service). 

6.2 OPTION 2 - Council can determine not to approve the recommendation and 
refer the matter back to the Chief Officers Committee with their clear reasons 
for not approving the recommendation.  In this event an interim arrangement 
for the role of Chief Executive would need to be progressed, with 
consideration given to internal and external candidates, until further 
arrangements can be proposed and agreed. 

7.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 There are no additional financial implications from this recommendation. The 
position of Chief Executive is a funded post within the Council’s Staffing 
Budget. There are no cost implications connected to the departure of the 
existing post holder. 

8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 Section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 provides that it 
shall be the duty of every relevant authority to designate one of their officers 
as the Head of its paid service. 

8.2 In addition, both the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 
Regulations 2001 and the Council’s constitution require the appointment of 
an officer designated as the Head of the Authority’s to be made by Council.  

9



 

9.0 CONCLUSION 

9.1 This report concludes the appointment process for the position of Chief 
Executive (Head of Paid Service). 

Stewart Young 
Leader of the Council/Chair of Chief Officers Committee 
15 June 2021 
  
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Ms Gillian (Gill) Steward’s Career History. 
 
Electoral Division(s): All 

*  Please remove whichever option is not applicable 
 

Executive Decision  No* 

 

Key Decision  No* 

 

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?   N/A* 

 

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  No* 

 

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained? 

  N/A* 

   

 

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny? 
If so, give details below. 

 No* 

  

 

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken? 

  N/A* 

   

 

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?   N/A* 

   

 
N.B. If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the 

expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is 
urgent and exempt from call-in and the Head of Member Services and Scrutiny has 
obtained the necessary approvals. 

 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
No previous relevant decisions. 
 
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
No background papers. 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Contact: Luci Robb, Senior Manager, Workforce & Organisational Development.  
luci.robb@cumbria.gov.uk 

10

mailto:luci.robb@cumbria.gov.uk


 

Appendix 1  
Ms Gillian (Gill) Steward’s Career history 
 
CAREER HISTORY 
 
Non-Executive Roles 
I have been the Chair of the Board of Trustees for the Centre for Local Economic Strategy 
(CLES) for 4 years.  
 
I also hold the role of non-executive Director and the Chair of the Lampton Group. The 
Lampton Group consists of the London Borough of Hounslow’s group of three arm’s 
lengths companies.  
 
October 2018 to Present.  
Freelance Consultant  
 
March 2020 – November 2020 - I established and then led the Regional structure for the 
DHSC Contain Programme and held the role of Regional Convenor for the South West. I 
established the Regional infrastructure including recruiting the Regional teams and 
supported the development of the Local Outbreak Management Plans.  
 
May 2019 to February 2020 – I worked with Surrey County Council on the 
transformation of place-based services, also covering the role of Executive Director.  I 
led a review of the Directorate and working with the senior team in the Directorate put in 
place a new approach, supporting strategies, plans and structures.  
 
Over the last 18 months I have worked with Thurrock Council as an adviser and a 
critical friend on their Place based Services, supporting the Council with the restructure 
and refocus of the services, including acting as an adviser on the structure, key strategies 
and senior appointments in the Directorate.  
 
From October 2018 to March 2019 - I supported the Royal Borough of Kingston as 
Interim CEO.  
 
Over the last 2 years I have also been an adviser for the LGA on Health and Social Care 
- supporting the development of Health and Care systems.  
 
I coach and mentor. I am an experienced Technical Assessor for Executive leadership 
roles.  
 
Over the last two and half years, I have also delivered several one-off short-term pieces of 
work for example supporting the London Borough of Barnet on the reset of the Councils 
strategic partnership with Capita as Barnet insourced services. 
 
February 2016 to October 2018  
Chief Executive London Borough of Bexley 
At Bexley I led a transformation programme, developing a new Corporate Plan and 
medium-term financial strategy (MTFS). In addition to the Chief Executive role, I also acted 
as the Director of Growth and Regeneration. I led the development of new inclusive 
economic and growth strategy.  
 
January 2014 to January 2016  
Interim Chief Executive West Sussex County Council 
I joined West Sussex following the departure of the previous CEO. I developed a new 
corporate plan – Future West Sussex – supported by a MTFS to deliver with no 
government grant. Future West Sussex changed both the resource allocation and priorities 
of the council: increasing focus and investment in Children’s and Adult Services.  
 

11



 

April 2013 - January 2014  
Freelance public sector consultant and interim 
I spent 8 months at Essex County Council as Interim Executive Director of Customer 
and Place at Essex County Council. I established a new operational directorate – 
bringing together Customer Services, Transport and Highways, Waste Disposal, 
Environmental and Economic Development.  
 
I also worked on a range of short consultancy projects including supporting two councils in 
Wales in their development of shared services. I also provided strategic advice and support 
for the London Borough of Lambeth on their transformational programme. 
 
April 2008 to April 2013  
Corporate Director of Communities, Cornwall Council  
I joined the County Council in the year before local government reorganisation to lead part 
of the programme setting up the new council. I led all Place based services. I brought 
together these services from the 7 councils into the largest Directorate in the Council 
putting in place a new structure and designing new operating models for services.  
 
January 2006 – April 2008   
Executive Director Corporate Services, London Borough of Hackney 
At Hackney, I brought together a range of services into a new directorate.  I led the £100 
million Service First Programme bringing together staff scattered across the borough into 
two campuses.  
 
August 2003 – January 2006   
Executive Director of Corporate Services and Resources, Bracknell Forest 
Borough Council 
At Bracknell Forest I established a much larger department and led a programme of work 
to reengineer the delivery of front facing services establishing a new Customer Services 
division.  
 
March 2002 - August 2003  
Chief Executive, Surrey Police Authority 
I was the first full time Clerk to Surrey Police Authority. 
 
June 1996 – March 2002          
Director of Corporate Development, Greater Manchester Police 
I was the first civilian and woman Director for Greater Manchester Police (GMP).  
 
Previous Career  
I started my career as a researcher working on a range of Government funded projects 
about policing, community safety and regeneration at the University of Manchester.  
 

 
 

12



 

COUNTY COUNCIL  

Meeting date: 24 June 2021 

From: Leader of the Council  

 

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES – CUMBRIA POLICE AND 

CRIME PANEL 
 

ADVICE OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR  

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report recommends that members are appointed to the Police and 
Crime Panel for 2021 in line with the procedure agreed between the 
County Council and District Councils.  

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 There are no specific strategic planning or equality implications.  

3.0 RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 Council is recommended to appoint 3 members of the Council to the 
Police and Crime Panel in line with the allocations set out in this report 
and to approve the carrying out of an election among the independent 
members on the Council and the 6 District Councils to appoint an 
independent member to the Police and Crime Panel.  

4.0 BACKGROUND 

Cumbria Police and Crime Panel 

4.1 Cumbria Police and Crime Panel (PCP) is a statutory scrutiny body which is 
a joint committee between the County Council and the six District Councils.  
The statutory membership of the panel is 10 councillor members and 2 co-
opted members independent of the Councils.  The Cumbria local authorities 
have agreed that the councillor membership will reflect the political balance 
of the County as far as possible. 

4.2 The Council makes annual appointments to the PCP.  Entitlement to seats is 
determined by a procedure agreed between the County Council and District 
Councils which operates as follows.  The County and six District Councils 

13

Agenda Item 5



 

each appoint one member to sit on the PCP.  This fills 7 of the 10 places on 
the committee.   

4.3 In determining its nomination, the Council is required to give consideration to 
the “balanced objective requirement” and to the continuity of membership to 
enable the Panel’s expertise and skills to be developed for the effective 
scrutiny of the Police and Crime Commissioner.   In view of these objectives 
and it is recommended that the Council’s nomination is: 

Mr Roger Bingham (Conservative Group).   

4.4 Following the nomination of the 7 places by the County Council and 6 
District Councils, the County Council is required to undertake a review of the 
membership to ensure that it reflects as far as possible the overall political 
proportionality of the political parties across the 7 Councils. 

4.5 If as a result of this review independent (i.e. non-aligned members) are 
entitled to a place (and no independent has been nominated as part of the 
initial 7 nominations)  this is filled through an election (run by the County 
Council) whereby independent members on the 6 Districts and the County 
Council have the opportunity to vote for those independent members who 
wish to serve on the PCP. The successful candidate is then nominated to 
the PCP by their own local authority.   The remaining places are nominated 
by the County Council. 

4.6 Following receipt of the nominations from the Districts the review has been 
undertaken.  The review concludes that independent members are entitled 
to one place on the PCP in 2021-2022.  None of the District Councils have 
appointed an independent member so unless the County Council nomination 
is an independent member a vote will be required to appoint an independent 
member.  The vote will be carried out by asking all independent members on 
the 7 Councils whether they wanted to nominate any candidates.  Following 
this the independent members will all be asked to vote on the candidates 
and the candidate receiving the most votes will be selected.  

4.7 The County Council is required to appoint a further two members.  To reflect 
political proportionality across the seven Councils as far as possible these 
two appointees should be members of the Conservative Group.   

4.8 It is recommended that the Members nominated for appointment by Council 
to fill these two posts are:  

Mr Mike Johnson (Conservative Group); and 
Mr David Whipp (Conservative Group). 

5.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There is sufficient budget to meet the members’ allowances and expenses 
arising from the recommendations contained within this report.  

14



 

6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The appointment of members to bodies as recommended in this report gives 
effect to the legal and constitutional provisions about membership of the 
PCP.  

7.0 CONCLUSION 

7.1 Council is requested to appoint members to the Police and Crime Panel in 
accordance with this report so that the membership reflects as far as 
possible the political balance across the County and 6 District Councils. 

Iolanda Puzio 
Chief Legal Officer and Monitoring Officer 
16 June 2021 
  
 
APPENDICES 
 
None. 
 
Electoral Division(s): All  

 

Executive Decision  No 

 

Key Decision  No 

 

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?   N/A 

 

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  N/A 

 

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny? 
If so, give details below. 

 N/A 

  

 

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?   N/A 

   

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 
Cumbria County Council – 27 June 2019 – Appointments to Committees – Cumbria 
Police and Crime Panel  
 
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
 
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny. 
 

15



 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No relevant background papers. 
 
RESPONSIBLE CABINET MEMBER 
 
Leader of the Council.  
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Nina Ellement, Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
Tel – 07423 749534  Email – nina.ellement@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 

16

mailto:nina.ellement@cumbria.gov.uk


 

COUNTY COUNCIL  

Meeting date: 24 June 2021 

From: The Chief Legal Officer 

 

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON  
 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report recommends that Council appoints Ghazala Koosar and 
Sarah Townshend Crawford as Independent Persons as part of the 
Council’s arrangements for dealing with complaints about elected and 
co-opted members under the Member Code of Conduct. 

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

The recommendations in this report support the maintenance and 
continuous improvement of robust ethical standards arrangements for 
elected and co-opted members. A robust ethical standards regime 
supports the Council in achieving its objectives.  

2.1 There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.  

3.0 RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 Council is recommended to appoint:  

Ghazala Koosar and 

Sarah Townshend Crawford 

as Independent Persons for a period of two years from 1 July 2021, 
renewable by the Council for a further two years.  

3.2 Council is recommended to formally extend its thanks to Mr Roy 
Worsley, who has served as Independent Person since 2012 and whose 
term of office ends on 1 July 2021. 

 

17

Agenda Item 6



 

4.0 BACKGROUND 

4.1 Under the Localism Act 2011 (the Act), the Council must appoint at least one 
Independent Person under its arrangements for investigating complaints 
about elected and co-opted members under the Code of Conduct.  

4.2 Under the Act, an Independent Person must be consulted before the 
Standards Committee decides on the outcome of an investigation that a 
member has breached the Code of Conduct.  Under the Council’s protocol 
for dealing with complaints about elected or co-opted members, approved by 
the Standards Committee on 25 January 2021, the Monitoring Officer 
consults the Independent Person at all stages of the complaint process.  
Members and co-opted members who are the subject of a complaint may 
also consult the Independent Person. 

4.3 Since the last time an Independent Person was appointed by the Council, 
some changes have been made to the role. These implement 
recommendations in the 2019 report of the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life (CSPL) following a review of the standards regime in local 
government.1    In its report the CSPL recognised that the Independent 
Person had become a distinctive and important source of assurance within 
the standards regime. The CSPL recommended that there should be at least 
two Independent Persons, to support management of potential conflicts of 
interest in advising different people involved in a complaint, as described in 
paragraph 4.2 above.  In addition, the CSPL recommended that Independent 
Persons should be appointed for a two-year fixed term, renewable once, to 
provide security in the role and to support the maintenance of independence. 
The Committee also made several observations about best practice in the 
role of Independent Person which have been incorporated into the role 
profile (Appendix 1). The Monitoring Officer, following consultation with the 
Standards Committee on 25 January 2021, adopted the recommendations of 
CSPL as best practice, and recommends that the Independent Persons are 
appointed on this basis.   

4.4 The term of office of the current Independent Person ends on 1 July 2021.  
Following consultation with the Standards Committee, a process to engage 
two replacements was carried out during March to May 2021. This 
comprised review of the role as described in paragraph 4.3, followed by 
open advertising, a targeted search through Cumbrian organisations such as 
the Local Enterprise Partnership, Cumbria Race Equality Forum, AWAZ 
Cumbria, and through Linked In. The response to the recruitment campaign 
was very good, with nine applications received by the closing date.  The 
Monitoring Officer shortlisted the applications against the role profile and 
selected 6 applicants for interview (1 withdrew before interview).  The 
selected applicants were interviewed by a panel comprising Cllrs Hillary 
Carrick, Frank Morgan and Andrew Connell. The Panel was supported by 
the Chief Legal Officer and Monitoring Officer Iolanda Puzio, and Senior 
Solicitor Liz Morgan. The panel held interviews on 26 and 27 May 2021.   

 

                                                           
1 Local Government Ethical Standards.  A review by the Committee on Standards in Public Life. January 2019. 

18



 

4.5 The applicants recommended for appointment are those that the interview 
panel considered to best meet the requirements of the Independent Person, 
assessed against the role profile.  They each bring substantial and varied 
experience to the role, a summary of which is set out in Appendix 2.  
References have been received for the candidates selected and are 
satisfactory.  

4.6 Members should note that an allowance of £1000/year (for each 
Independent Person appointed) was offered as part of the recruitment, to 
attract suitably experienced candidates and in recognition of the 
responsibilities of the Independent Person under the new role profile. This 
will be paid from the Members Allowances budget.  

5.0 OPTIONS 

5.1 The Council must have in place at least one Independent Person to comply 
with the Localism Act 2011.  For the reasons explained above members are 
recommended to appoint two Independent Persons for a period of two years, 
renewable once. Members are recommended to make the appointments 
contained in this report.  

5.2 Following appointment by full Council the Monitoring Officer will write to 
those appointed to engage them as Independent Persons on behalf of the 
Council.  

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The recommendation in this report is for the appointment of two Independent 
Persons for two years from the 1 July 2021. As noted in Paragraph 4.6 the 
allowance to be paid to each Independent Person is £1000/year. This 
allowance will be funded by the existing Member’s Allowance budget, which 
is part of the Chief Legal Officer budget in Corporate, Customer and 
Community Services.  

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Under section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 the Council must put in place 
arrangements for investigation of complaints about elected members and 
these arrangements must include provision for appointment by the Council of 
at least one Independent Person.  

8.0 CONCLUSION 

8.1 The Council has undertaken an engagement process to seek two new 
Independent Persons in line with current good practice.  Members are 
recommended to appoint the applicants selected by the recruitment panel 
and named in this report.  

Iolanda Puzio 
Chief Legal Officer 
9 June 2021 
 

19



 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 Role Profile for Independent Person 
Appendix 2 Summary of Applicants recommended for appointment. 
 
 
Electoral Division(s): All 

 

Executive Decision  No 

 

Key Decision  No 

 

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan? N/A 

 

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency? N/A 

 

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny? 
If so, give details below. 

N/A  

  

 

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?   N/A 

   

 
 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
No previous relevant decisions. 
 
 
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny. 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
No background papers. 
 
 
RESPONSIBLE CABINET MEMBER 
 
Leader of the Council. 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Contact: Shamim Lindsay,  
Phone: 07879 117819  
E Mail: shamim.lindsay@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

20

mailto:shamim.lindsay@cumbria.gov.uk


Appendix 1   

 

 
 

 

CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

INDEPENDENT PERSON – STANDARDS  

 

Role Profile for Independent Persons 

 
 

ESSENTIAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
 

1. Independence from the Council.  The person engaged must not 
currently be an elected member, co-opted member or officer of the 
Council, or have been in any of these positions within the five years 
prior to 1 July 2021.  In addition, the Independent Person may not be a 
relative or close friend of any such person.  
 

2. A commitment to supporting the Council to maintain high ethical 
standards and to ensure public and member confidence in its member 
standards arrangements. 
 

3. An understanding of the public interest in ethical standards of local 
members, the standards of conduct expected by the community of 
members of public authorities and the degree of scrutiny under which 
members are placed. 
 

4. Ability to gain the confidence of members of the public, elected and co-
opted members and of the Council and senior officers of the Council. 
 

5. Awareness of the political nature of local authorities and sensitivity to 
how this might impact on the ethical standards regime. 
 

6. Ability to analyse and interpret substantial and complex information 
(written and verbal) and to synthesise what is important and relevant in 
the context of ethical standards and complaints about members of the 
Council. 
 

7. Excellent listening skills, and oral and written communication skills, 
including the use of electronic communications media. 
 

8. Ability to offer authoritative and impartial advice to members of the 
public, elected and co-opted members of the Council and senior 
officers of the Council. 
 

21



Appendix 1   

 

9. Ability to make decisions, grounded in sound reasoning, judgement and 
impartiality. 
 

10. Ability to commit and organise the time required to carry out the role. 
 

11. Ability and willingness to attend meetings of the County Council’s 
Standards Committee or any of its sub-committees or panels as 
necessary. 
 

12. Ability and willingness to work constructively with members of the 
public, elected and co-opted members of the Council and senior 
officers of the Council. 

 
13. Ability and willingness to constructively challenge accepted views and 

put forward informed alternative perspectives where this is appropriate 
to achieve the objectives of the Council to promote and maintain high 
standards of member conduct. 
 

14. Comfortable with having a public profile as an Independent Person for 
the County Council. 

 
 

 

DESIRABLE  
 

15. Experience of working in a professional or management capacity in a 
public organisation, voluntary organisation, charitable organisation, 
commercial organisation, political organisation, professional or 
employee organisation. 

 
16. Experience of investigating or making decisions on complaints, or in 

relation to ethical standards or other aspects of corporate governance 
in a large organisation. 
 

17. An understanding of dispute resolution processes, such as mediation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22



Appendix 1   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

INDEPENDENT PERSON   

 

Role Description for Independent Persons  
 

The role of Independent Person was created under Section 28(7) of the 
Localism Act 2011. The Council has a duty under the Localism Act to 
promote and maintain high standards of conduct for its elected and co-opted 
members and appointing one or more Independent Persons forms part of the 
Council’s statutory responsibilities.  
 
The statutory role of the Independent Person is to act as an impartial 
consultee when a complaint has been made about a member of the Council. 
The Independent Person may play a wider role in the promotion and 
maintenance of an effective standards regime, and the role required by the 
County Council is set out in this role description.  
 
The Independent Person brings a valuable external and independent 
perspective to the standards process, aimed at providing assurance of high 
standards of decision making and fairness in the process. 
 
The role of the independent person will include: 
 

1. Providing advice to the Monitoring Officer (or the Deputy Monitoring 
Officer) at each stage of the process for determining whether to 
investigate a complaint about an elected member.   

 
2. Providing advice to the Monitoring Officer about how a complaint might 

be investigated or resolved. 
 

3. Preparing written advice to the Monitoring Officer at Stage Two of the 
complaint assessment process. 

 

23



Appendix 1   

 

4. Providing advice to complainants and elected or co-opted members 
who are the subject of a complaint.  (The Independent Person is not 
expected to provide advice to elected or co-opted members in other 
circumstances). 

 
5. Reviewing the report following investigation of a complaint about an 

elected or co-opted member and provide their written advice on how 
the Council might determine the findings of the investigation. 

 
6. Attending any hearing following investigation of a complaint, which is 

held by the Standards Committee to decide whether there has been a 
breach of the Code of Conduct and if so what if any sanction to apply.   

 
7. If it is decided at a hearing that there has been a breach of the Code of 

Conduct, providing their advice to the Standards Committee as to what 
if any sanction should be applied. 

 
8. Advising on reviews of the Member Code of Conduct and the 

procedures for dealing with complaints about elected members. 
 

9. Attending meetings of the Standards Committee as an observer. 
 

10. Contributing to discussions at the Standards Committee and with the 
Monitoring to ensure the continuous improvement of the Council’s 
regime for promoting and maintaining high standards of member 
conduct 

 
 
 

24



APPENDIX 2 

 

Ghazala Koosar  

Mrs Koosar is recommended for appointment as having excellent experience and 

knowledge of the role of Independent Person.  She has served as Independent 

Person for Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council since September 2014, assisting 

the Monitoring Officer and Standards Committee to assess complaints about 

members in accordance with the Code of Conduct. The member Interview Panel 

consider that Mrs Koosar, who is based in Oldham, will bring clear independence to 

the role, and add significant value through her strong and varied experience.  

In her professional life Mrs Koosar is a qualified solicitor who trained with Rochdale 

Metropolitan Borough Council. Since qualifying in 2014 she has developed her 

career in local government, the Civil Service and the private sector, returning to local 

government in February 2021 as a Commercial and Procurement Lawyer for the 

South London Legal Partnership.   

Mrs Koosar also has substantial voluntary experience, serving on the RSPB England 

Advisory Board, as a Deputy District Commissioner of the Scouts Association and as 

an Assistant Group Scout Leader.  

 

Sarah Townshend Crawford  

Ms Townshend Crawford is recommended for appointment having demonstrated 

strong transferable experience and knowledge which the panel consider will equip 

her well for the role of Independent Person.  

Cumbria-based, Ms Townshend Crawford has substantial experience in her 

professional life of dealing with complaints from members of the public including 

facilitating discussions between people with strongly opposed views in order to 

achieve an agreed resolution.  

Ms Townshend Crawford is currently Head of Compliance for Gilbert, Gilkes and 

Gordon Limited, an international business based in Kendal.  In her role she is 

responsible for overseeing external standards and all aspects of legal and regulatory 

compliance, including Health and Safety, Environment, Quality, Audit and Business 

Risk.  

 

25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

COUNTY COUNCIL  

Meeting date: 24 June 2021 

From: Deputy Leader of the Council 

 

AMENDMENTS TO THE APPROVED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 On 18th February 2021 Council were asked to note the Capital 
Programme for the period 2021-2026 of £451.347m (excluding 
Accountable Bodies).  The purpose of this report is to approve 
changes to the Capital Programme for 2021-2026, as a result of 
slippage and accelerated spend at the end of the 2020/21 financial year, 
therefore enabling the 2020/21 draft accounts to be finalised ahead of 
the statutory publication date of 31st July 2021, and approve £7.263m 
of externally funded new schemes to the Capital Programme, as 
recommended by Leader Decision Record dated 11th June 2021. 

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 The Capital Programme as a whole supports the delivery of all of the 
Council Plan priorities which are: 

 People in Cumbria are Health and Safe 

 Places in Cumbria are well connected and thriving 

 The economy in Cumbria is growing and benefitting everyone 

3.0 RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 Council is asked to approve for the reprofiling for slippage of £27.917 
from 2020/21 to 2021/22 Capital Programme, as detailed in para 4.3 

3.2 Council is asked to approve the acceleration of £0.920m of spend from 
2021/22 to 2020/21 Capital Programme, as detailed in para 4.4 

3.3 Council is asked to approve a new scheme of £7.263m of externally 
funded new schemes to the 2021/22-2025/26 Capital Programme, as 
detailed in para 4.7 

3.4 Council is asked to note the Revised Capital Programme 2021/22-
2025/26 of £486.055m  

27

Agenda Item 7



 

4.0 BACKGROUND 

4.1 The Capital Programme sets out the Council’s investment plans over the 
next five years to achieve the Council’s priorities and vision. The Council 
approved a Capital Programme for 2021/22 to 2025/26 on 18th February. 
This consisted of capital investment over the next five years of £451.347m 
for Council delivered schemes. Increases of £0.177m were approved by 
Cabinet in March 2021, to give an approved capital programme of 
£451.524m.  

Table 1 – Revised Capital Programme March 2021 

 
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

Total 

2021-26 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Approved Capital Programme 

February 2021 
122.396 126.178 108.215 58.908 35.650 451.347 

Approvals by Cabinet in March 2021: 

Grant / Contribution – External 0.177 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.177 

Approved Capital Programme     

March 2021 
122.573 126.178 108.215 58.908 35.650 451.524 

 
Slippage and Accelerated Spend at the end of the 2020/21 

4.2 At the February 2021 meeting, it was confirmed that in planning the 2021-26 
Capital Programme it had been assumed that if already approved schemes 
have slippage or accelerated spend at the end of the 2020/21 financial year 
the value of that slippage or accelerated spend will be carried forward to 
2021/22.  

4.3 This report seeks the approval for the re-profiling of the following slippage 
from 2020/21 into the 2021/22 Capital Programme: 

Table 2: Slippage schemes 

Scheme £m Reason for Slippage 

Devolved Formula Capital (2.801) 

This budget is financed by a grant from central government. 

The programme of work is demand led by the individual 

school the funding is received for. The budget is drawn 

down once the school provides an application for qualifying 

capital works, of the schools choosing. The impact of 

COVID19 and lockdown has resulted in spend being 

delayed on these school led projects which will continue to 

be progressed during 2021/22. 

DfT funded Flood Recovery 

Scheme - Challenge Fund 
(2.385) 

This budget is financed by a grant from central government, 

received in July 2020. The programme of work was to be 

undertaken across 2020/21 and 2021/22. The programme 

has been re-scheduled, meaning more expenditure will be 

undertaken during 2021/22 than was initially anticipated, 

but it is still expected to be complete by the original end 

date of September 2021. This slippage reflects the need for 

detailed investigation, design work, the requirement for EA 

consents and other approvals for some works, alongside 

28



 

Scheme £m Reason for Slippage 

some works being delayed due to adverse weather. 

Fire Vehicle replacement  (2.145) 

This budget is financed by borrowing. A number of 

appliances have now been ordered. Delivery will be later 

than originally anticipated, which has resulted in slippage. 

This delay is due to the procurement process taking longer 

than planned, to allow sufficient time for the Council to draw 

up a new procurement framework to comply with Brexit 

requirements. Supplier production timeframes are also 

longer than had been anticipated, as manufacturers 

required longer lead-in times for the sourcing / provision of 

raw materials following Brexit. 

Highways Fleet 

Replacement 
(2.075) 

This budget is financed by borrowing. As reported at Q3, 

slippage was expected due to impact of Covid-19 on 

vehicle stock / delivery timeframes and longer than 

anticipated procurement lead-in times. 

Cumbria Care Residential (2.000) 

This budget is financed by borrowing. Due to further Covid-

19 restrictions it was not possible to undertake construction 

work to Care Homes, unless it was an emergency. These 

schemes will progress when it is safe to do so.  

Strategic Highways Match 

Funding 
(1.823) 

This budget is financed by borrowing. Following 

confirmation of external funding for the Carlisle Station 

scheme, this budget was not required to finance work for 

that scheme. The budget will be carried forward to 2021/22 

where it will support future schemes, such as cross-a-moor.  

Additional Pot Hole Action 

funding 
(1.561) 

This budget is financed by external Grant. Significant 

delivery has been undertaken in a year of intense 

restrictions. As reported at Q3, slippage is due to 

availability of internal and external resources to deliver 

works. This is mainly due to winter weather conditions and 

Covid-19 (reduced delivery window, re-prioritising internal 

resources, reduced contracting opportunities, material 

supplies). Schemes not complete have been earmarked for 

delivery in early 2021/22. 

Devolved to Local 

Committees - Non-Principal 

Road Network (NPRN) 

(1.169) 

This budget is financed by external Grant. There has been 

slippage on several schemes across the 6 local committee 

areas, due to availability of resources and not having all 

necessary permissions in place. These schemes are now 

earmarked for early delivery in 2021/22. 

Strategic Acquisition and 

Investment Fund 
(1.105) 

This budget is financed by capital receipts and borrowing. 

Following confirmation of external funding for the for 

Carlisle Station scheme, this budget was not required to 

finance work for that scheme. The budget will be carried 

forward to 2021/22 where it will support future schemes. 

Corporate Property Planned 

Maintenance and 

improvement 

(1.015) 

This budget is financed by borrowing. Delays to the 

programme are due to the removal of large Care Home 

schemes and closure of buildings due to COVID. Works 

continued to be progressed during Q3 and Q4, but at a 

slower pace due to the ongoing effects of Covid. 

Highways & Transport - 

Bridges & Structures 
(1.012) 

This budget is financed by external Grant. Slippage is a 

result of less protection works being required during 

29



 

Scheme £m Reason for Slippage 

2020/21 than had originally anticipated and, as reported at 

Q3, delays to a number of scheme as a result of several 

factors which are being addressed to allow delivery in 

2021/22. This includes obtaining all necessary consents/ 

permits, completion of design work, resolving operational 

and access difficulties. 

ICT Investment/Additional 

ICT Investment 
(0.909) 

This budget is financed by borrowing. Following a decision 

to delay projects involving improvements to office 

accommodation, until we understand future building 

occupation post Covid, Wireless Network Improvements 

and Audio Visual Equipment projects have not been 

undertaken during 2021/22. 

Highways & Transport - 

Principal Road Network 

(PRN) Schemes 

(0.763) 

This budget is financed by external Grant. Significant 

delivery has been undertaken in a year of intense 

restrictions. Slippage is due to availability of internal and 

external resources to deliver all planned works. This is 

mainly due to winter weather conditions and Covid-19 

(reduced delivery window, re-prioritising internal resources, 

reduced contracting opportunities, material supplies). 

Schemes not complete will be delivered in 2021/22. 

DfT funded Flood Recovery 

Scheme 
(0.729) 

This budget is financed by external Grant. Slippage is due 

to weather conditions increasing river levels, delay in 

securing consents, gaining land access and risk pots not 

being realised this financial year (which will now be 

allocated to pipeline schemes for delivery in 2021/22). 

Lead Local Flood Authority (0.625) 

This budget is externally financed. Slippage is due to a 

number of factors, principally, flood alleviation projects at 

Fairways, Carus Green and Low Garth not progressing 

from design to construction stage. All now expected to 

progress to construction in Summer 2021. 

A592/A684 Road Safety 

Foundation Schemes 
(0.582) 

This budget is financed by external Grant. As reported at 

Q3 slippage is due to extra time needed to conclude design 

and consultation phase. Covid-19 has impacted some 

supply chains, including street lighting components. Further 

to this, changes to design specifications to deliver better 

value for money and reduce disruption to the public has 

delayed delivery on some elements of the scheme. All 

delayed work is now planned for 2021/22. 

North Carlisle Primary 

School - Design 
(0.500) 

Until discussion with the s106 developer are finalised, this 

scheme cannot progress. Discussions are on-going and it is 

expected that these will be finalised during 2021/22. 

Balance - slippage on 28 

other schemes 
(4.718) Minor accumulated slippage <£0.500m 

Total  (27.917)  

 

 

4.4 This report seeks the approval for the re-profiling of the following accelerated 
expenditure from 2021/22 into the 2020/21 Capital Programme: 

 

30



 

Table 3: accelerated expenditure 

Scheme £m Reason for accelerated expenditure 

Prioritised Capital 

Maintenance Projects/Schools 

Maintenance 

0.830 

As a result of schools remaining closed, this 

programme has been able to proceed quicker than has 

been anticipated. 

Balance – accelerated 

expenditure on 5 other 

schemes  

0.090 Minor Accumulated accelerated expenditure 

Total  0.920  

 

4.5 The inclusion of this slippage and accelerated spend gives a revised capital 
programme 2021 to 2026 of £478.521m. 

Table 4 – Revised Capital Programme 2021 to 2026 Slippage and accelerated 

  
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 Total 

2021-26 

£m £m £m £m £m £m 

Revised Programme – from Table1 122.573 126.178 108.215 58.908 35.650 451.524 

Slippage and accelerated 

Add Slippage from 2020/21 27.917 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 27.917 

Less Accelerated spend to 2020/21 (0.920) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.920) 

Revised Capital Programme, with 
slippage and accelerated spend 

149.570 126.178 108.215 58.908 35.650 478.521 

 

Changes approved by Leader Decision Record June 2021 

4.6 The inclusion of the following change, approved by Leader Decision Record 
on 10 June 2021, gives a revised capital programme 2021 to 2026 of 
£478.792m. 

Table 5 – Revised Capital Programme 2021 to 2026 at 11th June 2021 

  
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 Total 

2021-26 

£m £m £m £m £m £m 

Revised Programme – from Table4 149.570 126.178 108.215 58.908 35.650 478.521 

Approvals by Leader Decision Record 11th June 2021 

Change to External Grant approved 
by Leader Decision Record for 
existing schemes 

(0.050) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.050) 

Change to External Grant approved 
by Leader Decision Record for new 
schemes 

0.246 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.246 

Change to internal Contribution 
approved by Leader Decision Record 
for new schemes 

0.075 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.075 

Revised Capital Programme 10 
June 2021 

149.841 126.178 108.215 58.908 35.650 478.792 

 

31



 

Changes recommended from June 2021 Leader Decision Record 

4.7 A Leader Decision Record on 11th June 2021 approved that the following 
new schemes be recommended to Council for addition to the capital 
programme, this report seeks the approval for this amendment 

i. Marina Village: £4.000m budget to remediate the Marina Village site, 
allocated for housing within Barrow Borough Council’s Local Plan, with 
the aim of encouraging private sector investment in housing. To be 
financed from the LEP managed Getting Building Fund.  

 
ii. Carlisle Future High Streets Fund (FHSF): £3.263m budget to deliver 

highway improvement element included within Carlisle City Council’s 
Future High Street Funds bid. These include public realm and 
infrastructure improvements within Carlisle City Centre. This will be 
financed by external grant from Carlisle City Council (as the FHSF 
applicant).  

 
4.8 The impact on the capital programme is summarised in the following table 

Table 6 – Revised Capital Programme 2021 to 2026 with Council approvals requested 

from Leader Decision Record on 11th June 2021 

  
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 Total 

2021-26 

£m £m £m £m £m £m 

Revised Capital Programme 10 
June 2021 (Table5) 

149.841 126.178 108.215 58.908 35.650 478.792 

Amendments financed from external contributions: 

i) Marina Village - Getting Building 
Fund 

1.600 2.400 0.000 0.000 0.000 4.000 

ii) Carlisle Future High Streets Fund  0.631 1.329 1.303 0.000 0.000 3.263 

SUB-TOTAL 2.231 3.729 1.303 0.000 0.000 7.263 

Total Revised Capital Programme 152.072 129.907 109.518 58.908 35.650 486.055 

 

 

5.0 OPTIONS 

5.1 Council approves the capital adjustment requests in this report. The 
recommended option. 

5.2 Council rejects one or more of the proposed capital adjustment requests. 

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The resource and value for money implications are covered within this 
report. 

32



 

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Council is responsible for approving the reprofiling of spend on approved 
capital schemes across financial years including the approval of carry 
forward of slippage/accelerated spend into future financial years.  
Accordingly, the approval of Council is required for the adjustments to the 
Capital Programme to reflect the slippage from the 2020/21 financial year. 

7.2 The approval of Council is required for any new capital scheme for sums in 
excess of £500,000.  Accordingly, the approval of Council is required for the 
new schemes proposed.  

8.0 CONCLUSION 

The combined impact of the requested changes to the Capital Programme 
outlined in this report result in a revised value of the Councils Capital 
programme of £486.055 for 2021/26. 

 
  
 
APPENDICES 
No appendices 
 
Electoral Division(s): All 

 
 

Executive Decision Yes  

 

Key Decision Yes  

 

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan? Yes   

 

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  No 

 

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny? 
If so, give details below. 

 No 

  

 

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?   N/A 

   

 

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
[including Local Committees] 
Leader Decision Record dated 11th June 2021 relating to the 2020/21 Revenue and 
Capital Budget Monitoring: provisional year-end outturn report 2020/21 
 
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny 
 

33



 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

2020/21 Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring: provisional year-end outturn 
report 2020/21 as considered by the Leader on 11th June 2021 

 

 
RESPONSIBLE CABINET MEMBER 
Peter Thornton, Cabinet Member for Finance 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 

 

Paul Turney, Senior Manager Accountancy (Deputy s151 Officer)  
 
Contacts:  Wayne Johnston, Group Finance Manager – Corporate Accounting 
  Caroline Leigh, Senior Manager Capital Programme 

34



 

COUNTY COUNCIL  

Meeting date: 24 June 2021 

From: Leader of the Council  

 

APPROVAL OF MEMBER ABSENCE 
 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report asks members to approve a failure by any member of the 
Council to attend any meeting of the Council or other relevant bodies 
for a consecutive period of 6 months while members’ ability to attend 
meetings is limited by arrangements made to minimise the risk of 
transmission of SARS-CoV-2 coronavirus (the coronavirus).  

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 There are no strategic planning or equality implications. The 
recommendation in the report is made to manage the risk of a member 
ceasing to be member under section 85(1) of the Local Government Act 
1972 owing to a failure to attend meetings for 6 months in 
circumstances where members’ ability to attend meetings is limited by  
arrangements to minimise the risk of transmission of the coronavirus.   

3.0 RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 Members are recommended: 

3.2 To approve the absence of any member from any meetings of the 
Council for a period of 6 months ending on 9 September 2021, owing to 
the limited opportunity of members to attend meetings while 
arrangements are in place to limit the spread of the coronavirus. 

4.0 BACKGROUND 

4.1 Under section 85(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 (“the Act”) if a 
member of the Council fails to attend, throughout six consecutive months, 
any meeting of the local authority, unless the reason for the failure is 
approved by the full Council before the expiry of the period, the member 
ceases to be a member. 

35

Agenda Item 8



 

4.2 Under section 85(2) of the Act a meeting includes, in addition to full Council, 
a committee, sub-committee, joint committee, another body discharging 
council functions or advising the council on a matter regarding its functions 
and attendance as a representative of the Council at a meeting of any body 
of persons.   

4.3 The recommendation in 3.1 above is intended to prevent any member from 
ceasing to be a member under section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972 
owing to the ongoing arrangements to minimise the spread of the 
coronavirus which limit member ability to attend a normal schedule of 
meetings.  

4.4 At the time of writing this report, England remains under restrictions to 
minimise the spread of the SARS-CoV-2 coronavirus (“the coronavirus”).  
However, since 7 May 2021, when the Local Authorities and Police and Crime 
Panels (Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel 

Meetings)(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 expired, meetings of the 
Council and its committees must be held in a single geographical location, 
with physical attendance by members, and open to the public except where 
exempt or confidential information is being considered. The legal position in 
England has been confirmed by the High Court in Hertfordshire County Council 
& Ors v Secretary of State for Housing Communities and Local Government 
[2021 EWHC 1093 (Admin)]. 

4.5 The Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government has issued 
guidance to local authorities in the form of a letter to council Leaders on 25 
March 2021 and Covid-19 Guidance for Safe Use of Council Buildings issued 
on 29 April 2021. The ministerial letter and guidance recognise that local 
authorities may have concerns about holding meetings while measures to 
prevent transmission of the coronavirus remain necessary. Both the ministerial 
letter and guidance suggest that local authorities may rely on existing 
delegations and single member decision making where Constitutions permit, to 
minimise the number of face to face meetings, if deemed necessary. 

4.6 To minimise the risk of transmission of the coronavirus, the Chief Executive, 
supported by the Leader of the Council, the Leaders of the Liberal Democrat 
and Conservative political groups and Committee Chairs, took a decision on 
21 May 2021 about the calling of meetings. The effect of the decision is that 
in the period up to 25 June 2021 meetings will only be called where a 
decision cannot be delayed because it is time critical and cannot be taken 
other than by the relevant committee meeting.  This has resulted in a limited 
council diary running during this period and will mean fewer opportunities for 
members to attend meetings while these arrangements are in place.  

4.7 Where meetings are called, measures to minimise the risk of transmission of 
the coronavirus, such as social distancing are put in place.  To achieve this, 
political group leaders have agreed to meetings based on a reduced number 
of members in some instances, calculated to maintain political proportionality 
where possible.  The consequence of these measures is that some 
members may not have the opportunity to attend a meeting which has been 
called until more normal arrangements can resume. There may also be other 
reasons why a member cannot attend a particular meeting, which in normal 
circumstances would have no particular consequence. Taken together 

36



 

however, these circumstances present a risk that some members may fail to 
attend a meeting for six consecutive months. 

4.8 To prevent any member ceasing to be a member under section 85(1) of the 
Local Government Act 1972 owing to the coronavirus arrangements 
described in this report which reduce members’ ability to attend meetings, 
members are asked to approve the absence of any member who is unable 
to attend a relevant meeting for a consecutive six month period up to 9 
September 2021 (the day after the next scheduled meeting of full Council). 

4.9 Members will note that the approval sought in this report is precautionary 
and that they should attend meetings where it is possible for them to do so. 

5.0 OPTIONS 

5.1 Members may approve the recommendation in section 3.1 of this report.  
This will ensure that no members cease to be members owing to a failure to 
attend meetings in circumstances where members’ opportunity to attend is 
limited by the arrangements to minimise the transmission of the coronavirus.  

5.2 Members may decide not to give approval to the recommendation in 3.1. In 
this case, all members will have to make sure that they attend at least one 
relevant meeting during any six-month period. While this is the normal 
expectation of members, in the current circumstances, where the opportunity 
to attend meetings is limited by measures to minimise the transmission of 
the coronavirus, there is a risk that some members may fail to attend a 
meeting for six months without the reason having been approved by the 
Council. The member would then cease to be a member.  Approval cannot 
be given after the six month period has expired.  

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 There are no financial implications for the Council as a result of this report.  

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Section 85(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 enables a local authority to 
approve the reason for non-attendance of a Member at any meeting of the 
Council throughout a period of six consecutive months, provided that the 
approval is given before the expiry of the six-month period.   

7.2 Once a councillor loses office through failure to attend for the six-month 
period, the disqualification cannot be overcome by the councillor 
subsequently resuming attendance nor can retrospective approval of the 
Council be sought once the six-month period has expired. 

 

37



 

8.0 CONCLUSION 

8.1 The decision recommended in this report is sought as a precaution to ensure 
that no member ceases to be a member under section 85(1) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 in circumstances where members’ ability to attend 
meetings is limited.  

Iolanda Puzio 
Chief Legal Officer and Monitoring Officer 
9 June 2021 
  
 
APPENDICES 
 
No appendices. 
 
 
Electoral Division(s): All 

 

Executive Decision  No 

 

Key Decision No 

 

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan? N/A 

 

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency? N/A  

 

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny? 
If so, give details below. 

 No 

  

 

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?   N/A 

   

 

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
No previous relevant decisions. 
 
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
No background papers”. 
 
RESPONSIBLE CABINET MEMBER 
 
The Leader of the Council  
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Contact: Shamim Lindsay Phone: 07879117819 
E Mail: shamim.lindsay@cumbria.gov.uk 

38

mailto:shamim.lindsay@cumbria.gov.uk

	Agenda
	4 TEMPORARY APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE/HEAD OF PAID SERVICE
	5 APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES - CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
	6 APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON
	Appendix 1 CCC 24/06 - APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON
	Appendix 2 CCC 24/06 - APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON

	7 AMENDMENTS TO THE APPROVED CAPITAL PROGRAMME
	8 APPROVAL OF MEMBER ABSENCE

